# LINCOLN COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE AND LEGISLATIVE COMMITTEE Monday, April 6, 2020 at 8:00 a.m.

Meeting Location: Room 257/Government Services Center 801 N. Sales St., Merrill, WI 54452 Via Teleconference and In-Person Attendance

Persons wishing to attend the meeting by phone may call into the telephone conference beginning ten minutes prior to the start time indicated above using the following number:

Conference Call: 1 609-469-1737 Access Code: 432 085 656 #

The teleconference cannot start until the host (department head) dials in and enters the host password.

Due to COVID-19 restrictions on mass gatherings, you are encouraged to attend by phone. Preference for in-person attendance will be given to committee members, County Board members and essential staff. For those attending in person, please observe social-distancing by staggering your arrival time and by maintaining spacing between attendees of at least 6 feet. Attendees should spread out around the perimeter of the room.

# **Agenda**

- 1. Call meeting to order
- 2. Approve Personnel Policy Appendix C Families First Coronavirus Response Act
- 3. Budget Management During COVID-19 Pandemic
  - a. Hiring Freeze Except for Essential Service Positions Approved by A&L Committee on 3/23/20
  - b. Moratorium on Non-Essential Purchasing Approved by A&L Committee on 3/23/20
  - c. Consider Reduction in Staffing
- 4. County Board Organizational Meeting Issues
  - a. Secret Ballots for County Board Chair and Vice Chair procedure
  - b. Non-Secret Ballot for Elective Committees procedure
  - c. Seating for In-person Meeting
  - d. Other Concerns
- 5. April County Board Meeting Agenda Items
- 6. Set Next Meeting

Service Center – Posted on

7. Adjourn

### **DISTRIBUTION:**

Administrative & Legislative Committee Members – Robert Lee (Chair), Bob Weaver (Vice Chair)(Electronic), Julie Allen (Secretary) (Electronic), Hans Breitenmoser, Jr., Paul Gilk, Greta Rusch, and Calvin Callahan
Administrative Coordinator
Other County Board Supervisors
Department Heads

at \_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_ .m. by \_\_\_\_

| News Media - Notified on | at | m. by |
|--------------------------|----|-------|
|--------------------------|----|-------|

While there may be a quorum of the following committees present, no committee business will be conducted at this meeting:

**Finance & Insurance Committee** 

**Land Services Committee** 

Requests for reasonable accommodations for disabilities or limitations should be made prior to the date of this meeting. Please do so as early as possible so that proper arrangements can be made. Requests are kept confidential.

#### GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

- 1. Must be held in a location which is reasonably accessible to the public.
- 2. Must be open to all members of the public unless the law specifically provides otherwise.

#### NOTICE REQUIREMENTS:

- 1. In addition to any requirements set forth below, notice must also be in compliance with any other specific statue.
- 2. Chief presiding officer or his/her designee must give notice to the official newspaper and to any members of the news media likely to give notice to the public.

#### MANNER OF NOTICE:

Date, time, place, and subject matter, including subject matter to be consider in a closed session, must be provided in a manner and form reasonably likely to give notice to the public.

#### TIME FOR NOTICE:

- 1. Normally, a minimum of 24 hours prior to the commencement of the meeting.
- 2. No less than 2 hours prior to the meeting if the presiding officer establishes there is a good cause that such notice is impossible or impractical.

#### EXEMPTIONS FOR COMMITTEES AND SUB-UNITS:

Legally constituted sub-units of a parent governmental body may conduct a meeting during the recess or immediately after the lawful meeting to act or deliberate upon a subject which was the subject of the meeting, provided the presiding officer publicly announces the time, place, and subject matter of the sub-unit meeting in advance of the meeting of the parent governmental body.

#### PROCEDURE FOR GOING INTO CLOSED SESSION:

- Motion must be made, seconded, and carried by roll call majority vote and recorded in the minutes.
- 2. If motion is carried, chief presiding officer must advise those attending the meeting of the nature of the business to be conducted in the closed session, and the specific statutory exemption under which the closed session is authorized.

#### STATUTORY EXEMPTIONS UNDER WHICH CLOSED SEESIONS ARE PERMITTED:

- 1. Deliberation of judicial or quasi-judicial matters. Sec. 19.85(1)(a)
- 2. Considering dismissal, demotion, or discipline of any public employee or the investigation of charges against such person and the taking of formal action on any such matter; provided that the person is given actual notice of any evidentiary hearing which may be held prior to final action being taken and of any meeting at which final action is taken. The person under consideration must be advised of his/her right that the evidentiary hearing be held in open session and the notice of the meeting must state the same. Sec. 19.85(1)(b).
- 3. Considering employment, promotion, compensation, or performance evaluation data of any public employee. Sec. 19.85(1)(c).
- Considering strategy for crime detection or prevention. Sec. 19.85(1)(d).
- 5. Deliberating or negotiating the purchase of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session. Sec. 19.85(1)(e).
- 6. Considering financial, medical, social, or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the investigation of specific charges, which, if discussed in public would likely have an adverse effect on the reputation of the person referred to in such data. Sec. 19.85(1)(f).
- 7. Conferring with legal counsel concerning strategy to be adopted by the governmental body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. Sec. 19.85(1)(g).
- 8. Considering a request for advice from any applicable ethics board. Sec. 19.85(1)(h).

#### CLOSED SESSION RESTRICTIONS:

- 1. Must convene in open session before going into closed session.
- 2. May not convene in open session, then convene in closed session and thereafter reconvene in open session with twelve (12) hours <u>unless</u> proper notice of this sequence was given at the same time and in the same manner as the original open meeting.
- 3. Final approval or ratification of a collective bargaining agreement may not be given in closed session.

#### BALLOTS, VOTES, AND RECORDS:

- 1. Secret ballot is not permitted except for the election of officers of the body or unless otherwise permitted by specific statutes.
- Except as permitted above, any member may require that the vote of each member be ascertained and recorded.
- Motions and roll call votes must be preserved in the record and be available for public inspection.

#### USE OF RECORDING EQUIPMENT:

The meeting may be recorded, filmed, or photographed, provided that it does not interfere with the conduct of the meeting or the rights of the participants.

#### LEGAL INTERPRETATION:

- 1. The Wisconsin Attorney General will give advice concerning the applicability or clarification of the Open Meeting Law upon request.
- 2. The municipal attorney will give advice concerning the applicability or clarification of the Open Meeting Law upon request.

#### PENALTY:

Upon conviction, nay member of a governmental body who knowingly attends a meeting held in violation of Subchapter IV, Chapter 19, Wisconsin Statutes, or who otherwise violates the said law shall be subject to forfeiture of not less than \$25.00 nor more than \$300.00 for each violation.

# Lincoln County Personnel Policy (rev 1/1/18) APPENDIX (C)

This Appendix, reflecting federal legislation (H.R, 6201/Div C) enacted in response to the corona virus pandemic, is effective 4/1/20 - 12/31/20 by operation of federal law. It is being appended to the Personnel Policy (only) to provide notice to employees. Employee rights and eligibility under this law are only as set forth in the adopted law as recited below.

## **Families First Coronavirus Response Act**

# DIVISION C—EMERGENCY FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE EXPANSION ACT

SEC. 3101. SHORT TITLE.

This Act may be cited as "Emergency Family and Medical Leave Expansion Act".

# SEC. 3102. AMENDMENTS TO THE FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE ACT OF 1993.

- (a) PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY LEAVE.—
- (1) IN GENERAL.—Section 102(a)(1) of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (29 U.S.C. 2612(a)(1)) is amended by adding at the end the following:
- "(F) During the period beginning on the date the Emergency Family and Medical Leave Expansion Act takes effect, and ending on December 31, 2020, because of a qualifying need related to a public health emergency in accordance with section 110.".
- (2) PAID LEAVE REQUIREMENT.—Section 102(c) of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (29 U.S.C. 2612(c)) is amended by striking "under subsection (a)" and inserting "under subsection (a) (other than certain periods of leave under subsection (a)(1)(F))".
- (b) REQUIREMENTS.—Title I of the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 (<u>29 U.S.C.</u> 2611 et seq.) is amended by adding at the end the following:

#### "SEC. 110. PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY LEAVE.

- "(a) DEFINITIONS.—The following shall apply with respect to leave under section 102(a)(1)(F):
- "(1) APPLICATION OF CERTAIN TERMS.—The definitions in section 101 shall apply, except as follows:

- "(A) ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEE.—In lieu of the definition in sections 101(2)(A) and 101(2)(B)(ii), the term 'eligible employee' means an employee who has been employed for at least 30 calendar days by the employer with respect to whom leave is requested under section 102(a)(1)(F).
- "(B) EMPLOYER THRESHOLD.—Section 101(4)(A)(i) shall be applied by substituting 'fewer than 500 employees' for '50 or more employees for each working day during each of 20 or more calendar workweeks in the current or preceding calendar year'.
- "(2) ADDITIONAL DEFINITIONS.—In addition to the definitions described in paragraph (1), the following definitions shall apply with respect to leave under section 102(a)(1)(F):
- "(A) QUALIFYING NEED RELATED TO A PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY.—The term 'qualifying need related to a public health emergency', with respect to leave, means the employee is unable to work (or telework) due to a need for leave to care for the son or daughter under 18 years of age of such employee if the school or place of care has been closed, or the child care provider of such son or daughter is unavailable, due to a public health emergency.
- "(B) PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY.—The term 'public health emergency' means an emergency with respect to COVID-19 declared by a Federal, State, or local authority.
- "(C) CHILD CARE PROVIDER.—The term 'child care provider' means a provider who receives compensation for providing child care services on a regular basis, including an 'eligible child care provider' (as defined in section 658P of the Child Care and Development Block Grant Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 9858n)).
- "(D) SCHOOL.—The term 'school' means an 'elementary school' or 'secondary school' as such terms are defined in section 8101 of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act of 1965 (20 U.S.C. 7801).
- "(3) REGULATORY AUTHORITIES.—The Secretary of Labor shall have the authority to issue regulations for good cause under sections 553(b)(B) and 553(d)(A) of title 5, United States Code—
- "(A) to exclude certain health care providers and emergency responders from the definition of eligible employee under section 110(a)(1)(A); and
- "(B) to exempt small businesses with fewer than 50 employees from the requirements of section 102(a)(1)(F) when the imposition of such requirements would jeopardize the viability of the business as a going concern.
  - "(b) RELATIONSHIP TO PAID LEAVE.—
  - "(1) UNPAID LEAVE FOR INITIAL 10 DAYS.—

- "(A) IN GENERAL.—The first 10 days for which an employee takes leave under section 102(a)(1)(F) may consist of unpaid leave.
- "(B) EMPLOYEE ELECTION.—An employee may elect to substitute any accrued vacation leave, personal leave, or medical or sick leave for unpaid leave under section 102(a)(1)(F) in accordance with section 102(d)(2)(B).

### "(2) PAID LEAVE FOR SUBSEQUENT DAYS.—

"(A) IN GENERAL.—An employer shall provide paid leave for each day of leave under section 102(a)(1)(F) that an employee takes after taking leave under such section for 10 days.

### "(B) CALCULATION.—

- "(i) IN GENERAL.—Subject to clause (ii), paid leave under subparagraph (A) for an employee shall be calculated based on—
- "(I) an amount that is not less than two-thirds of an employee's regular rate of pay (as determined under section 7(e) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938 (29 U.S.C. 207(e)); and
- "(II) the number of hours the employee would otherwise be normally scheduled to work (or the number of hours calculated under subparagraph (C)).
- "(ii) CLARIFICATION.—In no event shall such paid leave exceed \$200 per day and \$10,000 in the aggregate.
- "(C) VARYING SCHEDULE HOURS CALCULATION.—In the case of an employee whose schedule varies from week to week to such an extent that an employer is unable to determine with certainty the number of hours the employee would have worked if such employee had not taken leave under section 102(a)(1)(F), the employer shall use the following in place of such number:
- "(i) Subject to clause (ii), a number equal to the average number of hours that the employee was scheduled per day over the 6-month period ending on the date on which the employee takes such leave, including hours for which the employee took leave of any type.
- "(ii) If the employee did not work over such period, the reasonable expectation of the employee at the time of hiring of the average number of hours per day that the employee would normally be scheduled to work.
- "(c) NOTICE.—In any case where the necessity for leave under section 102(a)(1)(F) for the purpose described in subsection (a)(2)(A)(iii) is foreseeable, an employee shall provide the employer with such notice of leave as is practicable.

#### "(d) RESTORATION TO POSITION.—

- "(1) IN GENERAL.—Section 104(a)(1) shall not apply with respect to an employee of an employer who employs fewer than 25 employees if the conditions described in paragraph (2) are met.
  - "(2) CONDITIONS.—The conditions described in this paragraph are the following:
  - "(A) The employee takes leave under section 102(a)(1)(F).
- "(B) The position held by the employee when the leave commenced does not exist due to economic conditions or other changes in operating conditions of the employer—
  - "(i) that affect employment; and
  - "(ii) are caused by a public health emergency during the period of leave.
- "(C) The employer makes reasonable efforts to restore the employee to a position equivalent to the position the employee held when the leave commenced, with equivalent employment benefits, pay, and other terms and conditions of employment.
- "(D) If the reasonable efforts of the employer under subparagraph (C) fail, the employer makes reasonable efforts during the period described in paragraph (3) to contact the employee if an equivalent position described in subparagraph (C) becomes available.
- "(3) CONTACT PERIOD.—The period described under this paragraph is the 1-year period beginning on the earlier of—
- "(A) the date on which the qualifying need related to a public health emergency concludes; or
- "(B) the date that is 12 weeks after the date on which the employee's leave under section 102(a)(1)(F) commences.".